

MoreLife Safeguarding policy



Table of Contents

About This Policy	4
Policy Statement	4
Legal Framework	4
Definitions	5
Named Persons for Safeguarding	5
Safeguarding Code of Conduct	7
What is Abuse?	7
Mental Capacity	8
Confidentiality, Consent and Information Sharing	8
Whistleblowing, Serious Incidents and Events	9
Responding to Safeguarding Concerns	
Responding to eSafety Concerns	
Recruitment	
Activities where Safeguarding needs to be considered	12
APPENDICES	15
Appendix A	15
Legal Framework: Legislation and Guidance Overview	15
Appendix B	
Responsibilities of the Named Persons for Safeguarding	
Appendix C	
What is Abuse?	
Appendix D	23
Responding to Child and Adult Safeguarding Concerns	23
Appendix E	
Responding to eSafety Concerns	26
Appendix F	27
Adult Safeguarding Concern Form	27
Appendix G	29
Child Safeguarding Concern Form	
Appendix H	
Safer Recruitment	31
Appendix I	34

MORELife

Criminal Record Declaration Template Form 1 For positions that are covered by the Rehabilitation of 1974.	
Appendix J	
Criminal Record Declaration Template Form 2 For positions that are exempt from the Rehabilitation o 1974.	
Addendum - Covid-19	



About This Policy

All staff including directors, employees, volunteers and sub-contractors; involved with, or working in the company, will be given a summary and access to this full policy upon appointment, and thereafter annually, and will sign to say they understand and will comply with the company's safeguarding arrangements. Failure to comply will be considered a disciplinary matter and be dealt with accordingly. The summary policy is available to the public on the company's website and this full version is available upon request. Similarly all staff have access to both the summary and full policy on PeopleHR.

Policy Statement

- MoreLife upholds the belief that the welfare of all children, young people and adults at risk is of paramount importance, regardless of their age, ability, culture, disability, gender assignment, sexual orientation, race, religion or belief.
- Morelife takes its duty of candour (see PeopleHR for current policy) seriously and encourages openness and honesty at all levels.
- MoreLife is committed to ensuring that everyone, individuals and organisations, who are involved with the company, are clear about their safeguarding roles and responsibilities. The company will actively promote the welfare of all children, young people and adults at risk by working to the best possible safeguarding standards across all its services, activities and venues.
- MoreLife has appropriate arrangements in place to safeguard and protect children, young people and adults at risk from harm as legislated for in England, including the weight management service in Greater Manchester which is regulated by the Care Quality Commission (CQC).
- The directors have a shared responsibility for ensuring that those benefiting from, or working with, the company, are not harmed in any way through contact with it. The company has a zero-tolerance policy for any abusive or harassing behaviour across all its activities.
- The company is clear that this policy must be strictly adhered to by all staff, including those from partner organisations when they work with the company.

Legal Framework

This policy is developed in line with the under-pinning key legislation, government and statutory guidance across England where the company operates (see <u>appendix A</u>). The key principle is that safeguarding is everyone's responsibility and each individual and organisation should play their full part; and have a child-centered and adult focused approach.

Children and Young People

Safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children and young people is:

- 1. protecting children from maltreatment;
- 2. preventing impairment of children's health or development;
- 3. ensuring that children grow up in circumstances consistent with the provision of safe and effective care; and
- 4. taking action to enable all children to have the best outcomes.



Adults at Risk

The aims of adult safeguarding are to:

- prevent harm and reduce the risk of abuse or neglect to adults with care and support needs;
- stop abuse or neglect where possible;
- safeguard adults in a way that supports them in making choices and having control about how they want to live.

Definitions

For the purpose of this policy:

A child is any person under the age of 18 years.

An adult at risk is defined as:

- having needs for care and support, and;
- experiencing, or being at risk of, abuse and neglect and;
- as a result of those care needs, is unable to protect themselves from either the risk of, or the experience of abuse or neglect.

"Staff" refers to: directors, employees and all other staff, associates or sub-contractors.

Named Persons for Safeguarding

The roles and responsibilities of the following named persons can be found in appendix B.

The Named Director for Safeguarding is:

Name: Professor Paul Gately Job Role: Managing Director Tel: 0771-118-5836 Email: <u>paul.gately@more-life.co.uk</u>

The company's National Lead for Safeguarding is:

Name: Sophie Edwards Job Role: Clinical Lead Tel: 0778-543-3985 Email: sophie.edwards@more-life.co.uk

The company's National Deputy for Safeguarding is:

Name: Kathryn Rushton Job Role: Operations Manager Tel: 0778-894-3923 Email: kathryn.rushton@more-life.co.uk



The company's Area Leads for Safeguarding and Mental Capacity are shown below together with Safeguarding Deputies:

Location	Area Safeguarding and Mental Capacity Leads	Area Safeguarding Deputies
Bedfordshire and Milton Keynes	Name: Claudette Rhiney Job Role: Service Manager Tel: 0740-7645-988 Email:claudette.rhiney@more- life.co.uk	Name: Grace Shiplee Job Role: Weight Management Lead Tel: 0778-894-3221 Email: grace.shiplee@more-life.co.uk
Essex	Name: Sophie Edwards Job Role: Clinical Lead Tel: 0778-543-3985 Email:sophie.edwards@more- life.co.uk	Name: Emily Costelloe Job Role: Weight Management Lead Tel: 0778-049-3033 Email: emily.costelloe@more-life.co.uk
Greater Manchester	Name: Sarah Berne Job Role: Service Manager Tel: 0777-592-0826 Email: sarah.berne@more-life.co.uk	Name: Meadhbh Westwood Job Role: Weight Management Lead Tel: 0750-364-7442 Email: meadhbh.westwood@more-life.co.uk
Suffolk	Name: Lisa Cox Job Role: Head of OneLife Suffolk Services Tel: 0782-651-6400 Email: lisa.cox@onelifesuffolk.co.uk	East Suffolk: Name: Helen Rose Clarke Job Role: Child Weight Management Lead Tel: 0782-651-7494 Email: helen.rclark@onelifesuffolk.co.uk West Suffolk: Name: Judith Godfrey Job Role: Adult Weight Management Lead Tel: 0782-651-6330 Email: Judith.godfrey@onelifesuffolk.co.uk Waveney: Name: Julie Newman Job Role: Stop Smoking Lead Tel: 07880 232345 Email: julie.newman@onelifesuffolk.co.uk
Wakefield	Name: Kathryn Rushton Job Role: Operations Manager Tel: 0778-894-3923 Email:kathryn.rushton@more- life.co.uk	Name: Sophie Edwards Job Role: Clinical Lead Tel: 0778-543-3985 Email: sophie.edwards@more-life.co.uk



Safeguarding Code of Conduct

Regardless of role, all staff will work to the highest standards of safeguarding practice, taking into account any specific issues listed below which are included in their work.

Everyone involved with the company will:

- treat everyone with whom they come into contact with respect;
- keep their private and professional relationships with clients separate, including when using social media;
- be aware that any personal contact with a child or an adult at risk, with whom they work professionally, is never appropriate outside the work environment;
- where possible, ensure that there is always one other colleague present when working with at risk groups;
- exercise caution when discussing sensitive issues with children or adults at risk;
- maintain and establish appropriate and clear professional boundaries with clients;
- report any safeguarding concerns about the behaviour of colleagues or clients to the Area Lead for Safeguarding without delay;
- check the suicide ideation protocol within the staff handbook if anyone expresses suicidal thoughts.
- understand the need for confidentiality and the importance of gaining consent when they escalate concerns, unless this puts someone at risk of harm;
- understand that there may be some concerns which need escalating without consent if deemed to be in the best interests of the person;
- treat and handle safeguarding information securely at all times, when storing, sharing and accessing the information. The access and sharing of safeguarding information must be on a strict need to know basis refer to the Data Protection Policy (see PeopleHR for current policy);
- only touch clients when it is essential and appropriate to do so;
- use the MoreLife Media Consent Form (see PeopleHR for current form) to confirm parents or carers of children under the age of sixteen, or adults who lack capacity, agree to being included on social media. (When children, or adults who lack capacity, are attending with a partner organisation or community group, it is that organisation's responsibility to seek permission and inform MoreLife staff if there are issues);
- report all gifts to the relevant line manager in line with the company's Anti Bribery Policy (see PeopleHR for current policy);
- speak with their line manager if they consider their work may put them into a position that might lead to an allegation of professional misconduct;
- exercise their right to whistleblow externally to the police, Social Care Services (or CQC if the matter is related to a slimming clinic) if they are concerned that safeguarding issues are being mismanaged or ignored within the company;
- maintain confidentiality at all times, including with family and friends.

What is Abuse?

Abuse of a child, young person or adult at risk can take many forms (see <u>appendix C</u>).



Mental Capacity

The primary purpose of mental capacity legislation across the UK is to promote and safeguard decision-making within a legal framework. There is a presumption of capacity – every adult has the right to make his or her own decisions and must be assumed to have capacity to do so unless it is proved otherwise. This means that you cannot assume that someone cannot make a decision for themselves just because they have a particular medical condition or disability. All Clinicians and Mental Capacity Leads will receive Mental Capacity and Deprivation of Liberties (DoLs) training.

It is a criminal offence for anyone to knowingly ill-treat or willfully neglect a person who lacks capacity.

Confidentiality, Consent and Information Sharing

- The company has a Data Protection Policy (See PeopleHR for current policy) and is mindful of its legal duties under the Data Protection Act 2018 and General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR). Personal information about children, young people, adults at risk and their families will usually be confidential and should not be disclosed to a third party without the consent of the subject.
- 2. However, the law allows for the disclosure of confidential information where this is necessary to safeguard a child, young person or adult at risk; or if a crime has or may have been committed, or it is in the public interest.
- 3. Disclosure of confidential information must be justifiable, according to the particular facts of the case and must be limited to those people who need to know in order to take appropriate action.
- 4. All safeguarding records of concern for children, young people and adults at risk are kept for 10 years or, in the cases of children or young people, until they are 25 years old (whichever is the longer period).
- 5. Staff will follow NHS consent guidance as a model of best practice: For consent to be valid, it must be voluntary and informed, and the person consenting must have the capacity to make the decision. The meaning of these terms are:
 - a. Voluntary the decision to either consent or not to consent to treatment must be made by the person, and must not be influenced by pressure from medical staff, friends or family.
 - b. Informed the person must be given all of the information about what the treatment involves, including the benefits and risks, whether there are reasonable alternative treatments, and what will happen if treatment does not go ahead.
 - c. Capacity the person must be capable of giving consent, which means they understand the information given to them and can use it to make an informed decision.
- 6. If an adult has the capacity to make a voluntary and informed decision to consent to or refuse a particular treatment, their decision must be respected.
- 7. Like adults, young people (aged 16 or 17) are presumed to have sufficient capacity to decide on their own medical treatment, unless there's significant evidence to suggest otherwise.
- 8. Children under the age of 16 can consent to their own treatment if they're believed to have enough intelligence, competence and understanding to fully appreciate what's involved in their treatment.
- 9. Otherwise, someone with parental responsibility can consent for them. This could be the child's mother or father, the child's legally appointed guardian, a person with a residence order concerning the child, a local authority designated to care for the child or a local authority or person with an emergency protection order for the child
- 10. If staff have any doubt about a client's ability to consent they will always seek legal advice



Whistleblowing, Serious Incidents and Events

Serious incidents are those that may harm the company's:

- Clients or staff;
- services, assets or reputation.

Where this involves CQC registered services it is the responsibility of the registered manager to notify the CQC.

All staff will know how to "whistleblow" externally in line with the company's Whistleblowing Policy (See PeopleHR for current policy). If they have concerns that the company is not addressing safeguarding issues appropriately or they feel unable to raise the matter internally. They can do this by:

- referring directly to local Social Care Services or the Police if a crime has, or may have been committed; or
- calling the Whistleblowing Helpline for NHS and Social Care for confidential advice: 08000 724725;

or

 if the concern is about a CQC regulated setting, contacting the CQC: 03000 616161 enquiries@cqc.org.uk CQC National Correspondence Citygate Gallowgate Newcastle upon Tyne NE1 4PA

Staff can find local contact details for applicable statutory agencies via the <u>NHS England Safeguarding App</u> or the government website for reporting <u>Child</u> or <u>Adult</u> abuse.



Responding to Safeguarding Concerns

Flowchart for referral (see appendix D for full policy)

Step One:

If you are worried a child or adult at risk has been abused, or is at risk of harm, because:

- You have seen something
- A child or adult says they have been abused
- Somebody else has told you they are concerned
- There has been an allegation against a colleague
- There has been an anonymous allegation
- An adult has disclosed that they were abused as a child and it has not previously been reported
- An adult has disclosed that they are abusing a child or adult

Step Two:

MoreLife has a policy for safeguarding - check this for guidance. Talk to the Area Lead for Safeguarding (or Deputy if the Lead is unavailable) unless they are implicated in which case contact the National Lead or Deputy for Safeguarding. Concerns about the National Lead and Deputy should be referred to the Named Director for Safeguarding.

Step Three:

The Area Lead or deputy for Safeguarding should refer the concern to Social Care Services and/or the Police (MASH, MultiAgency Safeguarding Hub in some areas) and follow up the referral in writing within 24 hours by secure email. Should it be more appropriate for the clinician handling the case to make the referral, they may do so under the supervision of the safeguarding lead or deputy. In cases of allegations against a person with a "duty of care" towards children, the Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) will coordinate the next procedural steps. Consult, Monitor and Record Sign/Date/Time Include name and role Act Promptly

When the concern is about the welfare of a child or adult at risk from schools, colleges, health providers, GP practices, prisons or social care settings, you should refer to that organisation's Lead for Safeguarding in the first instance and then inform your Area Lead or Deputy for Safeguarding that you have referred a concern.

Any consultations should not delay a referral. In an emergency do not delay: dial 999



Responding to eSafety Concerns

Flowchart for referral (see <u>appendix E</u> for eSafety policy)





Recruitment

The company has robust procedures in place for recruitment (see <u>appendix H</u>).

Activities where Safeguarding needs to be considered

Photography and Social Media

- **a.** No photography or video will be taken of individual or small groups of children, young people or members of the public without advising the subjects, parents or carers of the purposes of such images and seeking written signed consent with the MoreLife Social Media Consent Form (see PeopleHR for current form) from the responsible parent (for children under 16, and adults who lack capacity).
- **b.** When children, or adults who lack capacity, are attending with a partner organisation or community group, it is that organisation's responsibility to seek permission and inform MoreLife staff if there are issues.
- **c.** Public crowd photography will not be taken unless there is prominent signage by the entrance to the venue, and at the location where filming is taking place, detailing the purpose of such imagery and giving people the option to opt out.
- d. No personal devices, phones or cameras will be used to take any photographs or videos.
- e. MoreLife will commission a photographer when carrying out professional photography or filming. Where this is not appropriate, for example, taking photos for projects, only encrypted MoreLife devices or encrypted equipment will be used.
- f. All official press and other photographers will sign in with their official ID being shown.
- g. No pictures of individual or small groups of children, young people, adults at risk or any members of the public will be published in any medium in a way that they can be personally identified; (refer to the MoreLife Social Media Policy in the staff handbook (on PeopleHR) for photographing, recording video or audio of individuals and permitted use, for exceptions and further guidance).
- **h.** No images of clients, particularly children, in a state of undress will be taken.
- i. All images will be taken in open public access areas.
- **j.** All images will be uploaded onto Egnyte managed by the Marketing & Communications Team and deleted from any mobile device.
- k. Any images unused due to lack of quality etc. are deleted within 48 hours
- I. Images will be kept for a maximum of two years.

Young people under 16 years and adults at risk who volunteer or work at MoreLife

- **a.** It is important that, when young people work or volunteer for the company in any role, a check is made with the relevant local authority's education welfare team to see if an employment permit is required. No young person can work outside the hours of 7am and 7pm or for more than 4 hours without taking a break of at least 1 hour.
- b. During term time children can only work a maximum of 12 hours a week. This includes a maximum of 2 hours on school days and Sundays and a maximum of 5 hours on Saturdays for 13 to 14-year-olds (8 hours for 15 to 16-year-olds).
- **c.** During school holidays 13 to 14-year-olds are only allowed to work a maximum of 25 hours a week. This includes a maximum of 5 hours on weekdays and Saturdays and a maximum of 2 hours on Sunday.
- **d.** During school holidays 15 to 16-year-olds can only work a maximum of 35 hours a week. This includes a maximum of 8 hours on weekdays and Saturdays and a maximum of 2 hours on Sundays.



- e. No young person under 16 will handle cash in any way.
- **f.** Full written consent will be obtained from the parent or legal guardian of a young person under 16 or an adult who lacks capacity to undertake the work
- **g.** Full health and safety risk assessments will be undertaken to identify any possible risks when using any equipment.
- **h.** Workloads will be reduced and supervision increased in recognition of the young person's or adult at risk's ability and competence.
- i. Young people and adults at risk who volunteer will be told by their supervisor who to contact both in the company and externally if they, themselves, have a safeguarding concern within their placement

Work experience, college or student placements and apprentices under 18 years old

- **a.** All line managers overseeing work experience, placements and apprentices under 18 years old should be given a copy of, and agree to adhere to a full health and safety risk assessment by the school, college or placement provider. This risk assessment should cover specific activities where the student or supervisor may be more at risk in the workplace.
- **b.** Managers will be given the company's Work Experience Safeguarding leaflet (see PeopleHR for their reference).
- **c.** Consideration needs to be made to the age and maturity of the student or apprentice when allocating and supervising practical tasks.
- **d.** Close, intimate relationships between students is acceptable provided they act within the law for consent i.e. both parties are over 16 years old.
- e. No worker should develop close private relationships with students under 18 years.
- f. When students and apprentices are also students at educational establishments, safeguarding referrals should be made directly by the worker with the concern to the school or college's Lead or Deputy for Safeguarding.
- **g.** The concern should be recorded on the company's safeguarding concern record sheet (see Appendices F and G).
- **h.** Staff should then inform the Area Lead or Deputy that they have raised a concern.
- i. In cases where there are concerns about the school or college, staff should refer to the Area Lead or Deputy who will refer the matter in the usual way.
- **j.** Students will be given the company's Safeguarding for Work Experience leaflet (See PeopleHR for a copy of the leaflet) by their line manager and told who to contact both in the company and externally if they themselves have a safeguarding concern within their placement.

Working with people from government regulated settings including schools, colleges, health providers, GP practices, prisons and social care settings:

When there are concerns about the welfare of a child, young person or adult at risk, the staff with the concern should contact that organisation's Lead or Deputy for Safeguarding;

The concern should be recorded on the MoreLife safeguarding concern form (See appendices <u>F and G</u>).

Staff should then inform the Area Lead for Safeguarding that they have raised a concern, and;

In cases where there are safeguarding concerns about the school, college, health provider, GP Practice, prison or social care setting staff should refer to the MoreLife Area Lead for Safeguarding who will refer to the relevant agencies in the usual way.



Home Visits

These will only be made to clients when their GP already carries out such visits due to a clinical assessment of need.

All first visits are carried out by two staff who will carry out a risk assessment for future visits by a lone worker.

All staff carrying out home visits should be mindful to:

- only make home visits when necessary and as booked by the company
- plan and inform their line manager of the purpose, time and duration of each visit
- if they think there is a very young child or an adult at risk who needs supervision at home alone, stay on the doorstep and dial 999
- pass on any concerns about anything of concern which they observe such as possible health hazards to the Area Lead or Deputy for safeguarding
- observe best lone working practices

One to one and lone working

There are several services where staff will work with individuals alone due to confidentiality (e.g. NHS health checks) when a fellow worker will always be on hand to act as chaperone

Under no circumstances should any staff transport a child, young person or an adult at risk in their own or company vehicles unless there is an emergency. Permission should always be sought from their line manager if this occurs.

Those who visit sites and organisations alone should be mindful of their own personal safety.

CQC Registered services

At all times clinic staff will observe <u>Regulation 13</u>, <u>Safeguarding</u> of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (Regulated Activities) Regulations 2014 as inspected by the <u>CQC</u>. Inspectors will ask if service providers are safe, effective, caring and responsive to people's needs and well led?

Originator of Policy:	Safe Cic
Authorised signatory for Policy:	Professor Paul Gately, Managing Director
Date of Policy:	29 March 2021
Policy Review date:	30 June 2021
Ver	29 March 2021



APPENDICES

Appendix A

Legal Framework: Legislation and Guidance Overview

Description	General Legislation
Job applicants to disclose "spent" convictions and cautions for eligible positions such as direct, regular work with children	Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 (Exceptions) Order 1975
To make provision in connection with the protection of children and vulnerable adults with regard to Disclosure and Barring	Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006
Sexual exploitation and sexual offences	Serious Crime Act 2015 Part 5 (all) Sexual Offences Act 2003 The Female Genital Mutilation Act 2003
Protect individuals who make certain disclosures of information in the public interest; to allow such individuals to bring action in respect of victimisation; and for connected purposes.	Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998
Acts to give further effect to rights and freedoms guaranteed under the European Convention on Human Rights	Human Rights Act 1998
Make provision for the disclosure of information held by public authorities or by persons providing services for them	Freedom of Information Act 2000
The regulation of the processing of information relating to individuals, including the obtaining, holding, use or disclosure of such information.	Data Protection Act 2018
Description	Legislation: Children & Young People
Overarching children legislation bringing together earlier acts including; duty to investigate, cooperation between agencies and the need for a plan to safeguard a child. The welfare of children is paramount.	Children Act 1989
The setting up of boards/ committees to ensure agencies work together to safeguarding of children, with up to date, relevant policies and procedures and training	Children Act 2004 Section 11 Children and Social Work Act 2017
Description	Legislation: Adults
To make provision about safeguarding adults from abuse or neglect	Care Act 2014



To make provision for those who lack capacity to manage welfare, finance and health	Mental Capacity Act 2005 Amendment to the above Act regarding: Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoL's) These are used if a person is to be deprived of their liberty in a care home or hospital. From 2020 the Mental Capacity (Amendment) Act 2019, will introduce a new model for authorising deprivations of liberty in care, the Liberty Protection Safeguards (LPS).
Description	Statutory Guidance: Children
How Agencies act and cooperate to safeguard children	Working Together to Safeguard Children 2018, updated 2019
Duty to refer child abuse concerns and co-operate	What to do if you're worried a child is being abused 2015
Description	Statutory Guidance: Adults
To improve safeguarding arrangements for adults who are at risk of harm from abuse, exploitation or neglect	Care and support statutory guidance 2018



Appendix B

Responsibilities of the Named Persons for Safeguarding

The Named Director for Safeguarding will:

- a. be known to all staff with contact details;
- **b.** make sure the company is legally compliant;
- c. oversee the annual review of all safeguarding arrangements for the company or when legislation changes;
- d. ensure safeguarding is a shared responsibility and a standing agenda item for board meetings;
- e. ensure any needs for resources are funded to maintain robust standards of safeguarding across the company;
- f. maintain current training certificates and keep up to date with their legal safeguarding duties;
- **g.** liaise with, and support, the National Lead and Deputy for Safeguarding with regards to any issues arising around staff or the company's operations;
- h. report any serious incidents or events, where any clients, staff, volunteers, staff, services, assets or reputation have been harmed; to the relevant statutory agencies and/or ensure the relevant registered manager notifies the CQC for regulated services. This should be actioned in line with the company's Serious Incident Reporting Policy (See PeopleHR for current policy)
- i. treat and handle safeguarding information securely at all times, when storing, sharing and accessing the information. The access and sharing of safeguarding information must be on a strict need to know basis, refer to the company's Data Protection Policy (See PeopleHR for current policy)
- **j.** maintain confidentiality at all times, including with family and friends.

The company's National Lead and National Deputy for Safeguarding will:

- **a.** be known to all staff with contact details;
- **b.** be readily accessible by phone to the Area Leads and Deputies for Safeguarding during operational hours;
- c. listen and offer advice and support to the Area Leads for Safeguarding when needed;
- d. maintain current training certificates and keep up to date with their legal safeguarding duties;
- e. ensure this policy is kept up to date;
- **f.** prepare an overview safeguarding report for the Named Director for Safeguarding as a standing item for the Board's meeting agendas;
- **g.** monitor and review any safeguarding concerns about any of the company's activities, clients, staff and venues;
- h. review and stress test this policy annually, or more often if serious incidents occur;
- i. liaise with external statutory agencies as required;
- **j.** oversee an annual review of a training and job role analysis to ensure safeguarding training is delivered and certificated for all staff as relevant;
- **k.** liaise with external statutory agencies regarding any allegations or complaints against staff, or when safeguarding issues may attract media attention or litigation;
- I. in the absence of any Area Lead or Deputy for Safeguarding, refer any safeguarding concerns regarding children, young people or adults at risk in line with this policy;



- **m.** treat and handle safeguarding information securely at all times, when storing, sharing and accessing the information. The access and sharing of safeguarding information must be on a strict need to know basis. Refer to the company's Data Protection Policy (See PeopleHR for current policy).
- **n.** maintain confidentiality at all times, including with family and friends.

The company's Area Leads and Deputies for Safeguarding will:

- a. be known to all staff in their area with contact details;
- b. be readily accessible by phone during operational hours;
- c. maintain current training certificates and keep up to date with their legal safeguarding duties;
- **d.** ensure staff report and record their concerns appropriately on the company's safeguarding concern form (see <u>appendix F</u> and G), on the same working day, factually, timed, dated & signed, including job role;
- e. refer any welfare concerns regarding children, young people or adults at risk to the agencies available in the local authority area, Social Care Services or the police on 101 (in the case of an emergency, or if it is felt someone is in immediate danger, dial 999);
- f. record what was discussed and include a chronology of which external statutory agencies the matter has been referred to and any actions agreed; including when it is decided not to make a referral (see safeguarding concern recording form in <u>appendix F</u> and G);
- **g.** confirm any referral in writing within 24 hours, in the secure and encrypted format requested by the agency, including a copy of the safeguarding concern form;
- h. co-operate with any subsequent requests for information or action from any agencies;
- i. use MoreLife Egnyte to store all records for the reference of the National Lead and National Deputy as appropriate;
- **j.** treat and handle safeguarding information securely at all times, when storing, sharing and accessing the information. The access and sharing of safeguarding information must be on a strict need to know basis, refer to the company's Data Protection Policy (See PeopleHR for current policy);
- **k.** maintain confidentiality at all times, including with family and friends.



Appendix C

What is Abuse?

Children and Young People

- **a. Physical Abuse:** Physical abuse may involve hitting, shaking, throwing, poisoning, burning or scalding, drowning, suffocating or otherwise causing significant harm to a child. Physical harm may also be caused when a parent or carer fabricates the symptoms of, or deliberately induces illness in a child.
- b. Emotional Abuse: Emotional abuse is the persistent emotional maltreatment of a child such as to cause severe and persistent adverse effects on the child's emotional development. It may involve conveying to children that they are worthless or unloved, inadequate, or valued only insofar as they meet the needs of another person. It may include not giving the child opportunities to express their views, deliberately silencing them or 'making fun' of what they say or how they communicate. These may include interactions that are beyond the child's developmental capability, as well as overprotection and limitation of exploration and learning, or preventing the child participating in normal social interaction. It may involve seeing or hearing the ill-treatment of another. It may involve serious bullying (including cyber bullying), causing children frequently to feel frightened or in danger, or the exploitation or corruption of children. Some level of emotional abuse is involved in all types of maltreatment of a child, though it may occur alone; may feature age or developmentally inappropriate expectations being imposed on children.
- c. Sexual Abuse: Sexual abuse involves forcing or enticing a child or young person to take part in sexual activities, not necessarily involving a high level of violence, whether or not the child is aware of what is happening. The activities may involve physical contact, including assault by penetration (for example, rape or oral sex) or non-penetrative acts such as masturbation, kissing, rubbing and touching outside of clothing. They may also include non-contact activities, such as involving children in looking at, or in the production of, sexual images, watching sexual activities, encouraging children to behave in sexually inappropriate ways, or grooming a child in preparation for abuse (including via the internet). Sexual abuse is not solely perpetrated by adult males. Women can also commit acts of sexual abuse, as can other children.
- **d. Neglect:** Neglect is the persistent failure to meet a child's basic physical and/or psychological needs, likely to result in the serious impairment of the child's health or development. Neglect may occur during pregnancy as a result of maternal substance abuse. Once a child is born, neglect may involve a parent or carer failing to:
 - provide adequate food, clothing and shelter (including exclusion from home or abandonment);
 - protect a child from physical and emotional harm or danger;
 - ensure adequate supervision (including the use of inadequate care-givers); or
 - ensure access to appropriate medical care or treatment;
 - It may also include neglect of, or unresponsiveness to, a child's basic emotional needs.



e. Other issues that may involve or give rise to abuse include:

- **Children under 16 years old living away from home** with someone who is not a close relative. If this happens for more than 28 days, their parent/carer (or anyone else if this has not been done, or not possible) need to register the private fostering arrangements with the local authority.
- Children going missing from home, for whatever reason, as they may be exploited or trafficked.
- Young unaccompanied asylum seekers who have no responsible adults with them.
- **Peer abuse** including bullying as children can be abusers too.
- Radicalisation some people may be vulnerable to being drawn into terrorism if they lack selfesteem or are victims of bullying or discrimination. Indicators of this can be hard to recognise in both children and adults and may include: isolating themselves from family and friends, talking as if from a scripted speech, unwillingness or inability to discuss their views, a sudden disrespectful attitude towards others, increased levels of anger and /or an increased secretiveness, especially around internet use.
- **Violent extremism** is when groups or individuals who condone violence as a means to a political end is a particular risk for some children. Any concerns should be reported.
- Child sexual exploitation Sexual exploitation of children and young people under 18 involves exploitative situations, contexts and relationships where young people (or a third person or persons) receive 'something' (e.g. food, accommodation, drugs, alcohol, cigarettes, affection, gifts, money) as a result of them performing, and/or another or others performing on them, sexual activities. Child sexual exploitation can occur through the use of technology without the child's immediate recognition; for example being persuaded to post sexual images on the Internet/mobile phones without immediate payment or gain. In all cases, those exploiting the child/young person have power over them by virtue of their age, gender, intellect, physical strength and/or economic or other resources. Violence, coercion and intimidation are common, involvement in exploitative relationships being characterised in the main by the child or young person's limited availability of choice resulting from their social/economic and/or emotional vulnerability.
- Female genital mutilation FGM is a criminal offence it is child abuse and a form of violence against women and girls, and therefore should be treated as such. FGM is a procedure where the female genital organs are injured or changed and there is no medical reason for this. It is frequently a very traumatic and violent act for the victim and can cause harm in many ways. The practice can cause severe pain and there may be immediate and/or long-term health consequences, including mental health problems, difficulties in childbirth, causing danger to the child and mother; and/or death.
- Forced marriage Forced marriage is a criminal offence it is a form of child/ adult/ domestic abuse and has to be treated as such; ignoring the needs of victims should never be an option. Forced marriage affects people from many communities and cultures, so cases should always be addressed using all of your existing structures, policies and procedures designed to safeguard children, adults with support needs and victims of domestic abuse.
- **Concealed** pregnancy when a mother of any age does not seek medical help or support so the unborn baby may be at risk of harm as a result of not accessing maternity services.
- Child trafficking Children are trafficked for many reasons, including sexual exploitation, domestic servitude, labour, benefit fraud and involvement in criminal activity such as pick-



pocketing, theft and working in cannabis farms. There are a number of cases of minors being exploited in the sex industry. Trafficked children may not only be deprived of their rights to health care and freedom from exploitation and abuse, but may also be denied access to education.

- **eSafety** when children, young people or adults at risk may be targeted online for sexual abuse, financial gain, radicalisation and / or other crimes;
- **Domestic violence** when an individual exercises control over another in an intimate or family relationship. It takes many forms and can include neglect, physical, sexual, financial, property and / or emotional abuse.
- **Coercive behaviour** in the family or in a person's intimate relationships is a criminal offence. Controlling or coercive behaviour does not relate to a single incident, it is a purposeful pattern of behaviour which takes place over time in order for one individual to exert power, control or coercion over another. It is a pattern of acts of assault, threats, humiliation and intimidation or other abuse that is used to harm, punish, or frighten their victim.
- **Modern slavery** Modern slavery is a complex crime that takes a number of different forms. It encompasses slavery, servitude, forced and compulsory labour and human trafficking. Traffickers and slave drivers coerce, deceive and force individuals against their will into a life of abuse, servitude and inhumane treatment. Victims may be sexually exploited, forced to work for little or no pay or forced to commit criminal activities against their will. Victims are often pressured into debt-bondage and are likely to be fearful of those who exploit them, who will often threaten and abuse victims and their families. All of these factors make it very difficult for victims to escape.
- Child abuse linked to faith or belief which includes belief in concepts of witchcraft and spirit possession, demons or the devil acting through children or leading them astray. It includes neglect, physical, sexual and/or or emotional abuse.
- **County lines** is when gangs and organised criminal networks involved in exporting illegal drugs into one or more importing areas within the UK, use dedicated mobile phone lines or other form of "deal line". They are likely to exploit children to move and store the drugs and money and they will often use coercion, intimidation, violence (including sexual violence) and weapons.

Adults at Risk

Abuse is defined as a violation of an individual's human and civil rights by another person or persons. It may involve a single or repeated act or omission occurring within a personal or professional relationship where there is an expectation of trust which causes harm to an adult at risk.

Significant harm includes:

- Ill treatment (including sexual abuse and forms of ill treatment that are not physical);
- The impairment of, or an avoidable deterioration in, physical or mental health;
- The impairment of physical, emotional, social or behavioral development.

Behaviours Include:

- **a. Physical Abuse**: Hitting, slapping, pushing, kicking, misuse of medication, restraint or inappropriate sanctions.
- b. Sexual Abuse: Rape, indecent exposure, sexual harassment, inappropriate looking or touching, sexual teasing or innuendo, sexual photography, subjection to pornography or witnessing sexual acts, indecent exposure and sexual assault or sexual acts to which the adult has not consented or was pressured into consenting.



- c. Psychological Abuse: Emotional abuse, threats of harm or abandonment, deprivation of contact, humiliation, blaming, controlling, intimidation, coercion, harassment, verbal abuse, cyber bullying, isolation or unreasonable and unjustified withdrawal of services or supportive networks.
- d. Financial or Material Abuse: Theft, fraud, exploitation, pressure in connection with wills, property, inheritance or financial transactions, or the misuse or misappropriation of property, possessions or benefits. It can be online, by phone or face to face.
- e. Neglect or Acts of Omission: Ignoring medical or physical care needs, failing to provide access to appropriate health, social care, welfare benefits or educational services, withholding the necessities of life such as medication, adequate nutrition and heating.
- f. **Discriminatory Abuse**: Racism, sexism or acts based on a person's disability, age or sexual orientation. It also includes other forms of harassment, slurs or similar treatment such as disability hate crime.
- **g. Domestic Abuse:** Psychological, physical, sexual, financial, emotional abuse, coercive behaviour in the family or intimate relationships, and so called 'honour' based violence.
- **h.** Organisational Abuse: Neglect and poor care practice within a care setting such as a hospital or care home or in relation to care provided in someone's own home ranging from one off incidents to on-going ill-treatment. It can be neglect or poor practice as a result of the structure, policies, processes and practices within a care setting.
- i. **Modern Slavery:** Encompassing slavery, human trafficking, forced labour and domestic servitude. Traffickers and slave masters use whatever means they have at their disposal to coerce, deceive and force individuals into a life of abuse, servitude and inhumane treatment;
- **j. Self-Neglect:** Covers a wide range of behaviour including neglecting to care for one's personal hygiene, health or surroundings and behaviour such as hoarding.
- **k.** Hate and "Mate" Crime: A form of hate crime in which an "at risk" person is manipulated or abused by someone they believed to be their friend.
- I. Forced Marriage: When one or both spouses do not consent to the marriage but are coerced into it. Duress can include physical, psychological, financial, sexual and emotional pressure. In cases of adults who lack the capacity to consent to marriage, coercion is not required for a marriage to be forced.
- m. County lines is when gangs and organised criminal networks involved in exporting illegal drugs into one or more importing areas within the UK, use dedicated mobile phone lines or other form of "deal line". They are likely to exploit children and adults to move and store the drugs and money and they will often use coercion, intimidation, violence (including sexual violence) and weapons. They may also "cuckoo" which is taking over the home of a vulnerable person in order to use it as a base for drug dealing.



Appendix D

Responding to Child and Adult Safeguarding Concerns

Staff may become concerned by:

- their own observations and concerns;
- being told by another person that they have concerns;
- what the child or adult says;
- what others say;
- a complaint (including anonymous) from the public.

Handling Disclosures

A disclosure may be made verbally or by the behaviour of a child, young person or an adult at risk and it is important for everyone to remember the following:

- a. Keep calm;
- **b.** Reassure the child;
- c. Consider who else can hear;
- d. Listen carefully;
- e. Do not ask leading questions or promise confidentiality
- **f.** To factually record the child/adult's words as accurately as possible, on the safeguarding concern form and on the same day (see Appendix F and G) timed, dated & signed, including job role.

Important: When there are safeguarding concerns about a child, young person or adult at risk the person with the concern will immediately assess if the child or adult is currently safe and, in an emergency or, if it is felt someone is in immediate danger, 999 should always be dialled.

Actions to be Taken

If a worker has a concern, they will:

- a. inform their Area Lead or Deputy for Safeguarding without delay; and
- **b.** not investigate;
- **c.** preserve any evidence (if relevant);
- d. factually record their concerns in writing as soon as possible, on the same day, on the company's safeguarding concern form, co-operate with any following requests for action from the Area Lead or Deputy for Safeguarding or external statutory agencies. These records will include name, job role and be timed, dated and signed;
- e. maintain confidentiality at all times, including with colleagues, family and friends.

Important: The reliance the court will place upon the information obtained from the people involved (particularly from the victim) may be reduced if it is known that someone has discussed the issues with the child or adult outside the normal investigation process.



Safeguarding Allegations and Complaints against MoreLife Staff

When there is a safeguarding concern, complaint or allegation about the behaviour of any worker, it should be reported to the Area Lead or Deputy for Safeguarding (or the National Lead or Deputy if the Area Lead or Deputy for Safeguarding is unavailable or implicated). They will directly contact:

- a. for children, the Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) who will co-ordinate the next steps;
- **b.** for adults at risk Social Care Services (who are in MASH in some areas) who will co-ordinate the next steps;
- **c.** in the case of an emergency, or if it is felt someone is in immediate danger, the Police will be contacted on 999.

The Area Lead or Deputy for Safeguarding (or National Lead or Deputy, if the Area Lead or Deputy for Safeguarding is unavailable or implicated in any way) will:

- **a.** ensure the person with the direct concern has factually recorded their concerns in writing and on the same day on the company's safeguarding concern form; timed, dated & signed, including job role;
- **b.** maintain an accurate chronology of all discussions held and actions taken;
- c. inform the National Lead/or Deputy for Safeguarding as appropriate;
- d. attend multi-agency meetings to discuss the case if requested;
- e. co-operate with any police investigation.

In cases of allegations against staff the HR Team will

- a. adhere to the LADO's or Social Care Services' advice;
- **b.** consider possible suspension of the member of staff and provide an appropriate named person to support the individual involved ;
- **c.** for those in Regulated Activity (those who have enhanced DBS criminal records checks with barred list(s) checks): or Regulated Work refer to the relevant regulators; including the Disclosure and Barring Services (for those in regulated activities England and Wales) within 5 days of the closure of the case; and, if relevant, the professional regulator e.g. GMC or NMC

This includes, but is not limited to an individual in Regulated Activity in England or Wales who has:

- **a.** Behaved in a way that has harmed, or may have harmed a child or adult at risk;
- **b.** possibly committed a criminal offence against or related to a child or adult at risk; or
- c. behaved towards a child or adult at risk in a way that indicates they may pose a risk of harm to vulnerable groups.

Staff Records held by the HR Team

Details of allegations that are found to have been malicious should be removed from staff' records.

However, for all other allegations, it is important that a clear and comprehensive summary of the allegation, details of how the allegation was followed up and resolved, and a note of any action taken and decisions reached, is kept on the confidential staff' file of the accused, and a copy provided to the person concerned.



The purpose of the record is to enable accurate information to be given in response to any future request for a reference, where appropriate.

It will provide clarification in cases where future criminal records checks reveal information from the Police about an allegation that did not result in a criminal conviction and it will help to prevent unnecessary re-investigation if, as sometimes happens, an allegation re-surfaces after a period of time.

The record should be retained for a minimum of 10 years from the date of the allegation or retirement age whichever is the sooner.



Appendix E

Responding to eSafety Concerns

Safeguarding and modern technology.

All online safeguarding concerns will be dealt with in line with this policy, particularly in terms of referral and recording procedures.

All staff will:

- a. act professionally and within the law at all times;
- **b.** only interact with "at risk" groups with whom they come into contact at work via official MoreLife media, not personal;
- report any concerns without delay in line with the <u>eSafety concerns: flowchart for referral</u> and then notify the Area Lead or Deputy for Safeguarding of their concerns and actions without delay;
- d. record their concerns and actions on the safeguarding concern form (see appendix F); and
- e. ensure it is timed, dated and signed, including job role.

Examples of things that may give cause for concern may include worker who:

- **a.** befriends or communicates with members of the public who they work with; especially children, young people and adults at risk, by their personal phone, online, by messaging and social media etc.;
- **b.** is secretive about what they are doing and who they are meeting;
- **c.** takes images of company's activities with their own phone or tablet without permission of their line manager;
- **d.** does not use the MoreLife Social Media consent form (See PeopleHR for current form) to confirm parents or carers of children under the age of sixteen, or adults who lack capacity, to agree to filming during MoreLife activities;
- e. constantly clears their browser history;
- f. views adult pornography at work;
- g. views child sexual abuse images at any time;
- h. promotes discrimination, illegal acts or racial or religious hatred of any kind;
- i. shares confidential or sensitive information with others who are not authorised to know;
- j. circulates or messages any information which may be offensive.



Appendix F

Adult Safeguarding Concern Form

This form should only be filled in with information already known, be careful not to ask leading questions. Fill in factually. It should be filled out ASAP, on the same day and stored on the MoreLife secure system Egnyte by the Area Lead or Deputy for Safeguarding.

Details of Concerned Person	
Service or department	
Name	
Job Title/Role:	
Contact email	
Contact number(s)	
The Adult at Risk's Details	
Name of the adult at risk (including any names known)	
Date of birth	
Address	
Name of parent or carer if applicable and contact details	
Any special needs known	Including medical/disability/language/etc.
Name and details of any other adults at risk or children (under 18 years of age) in the family or setting	If relevant to the concern
Has the adult's consent been sought? (If not, why not?)	
Details of the Concern	
Date and time of concern	



Details and nature of concern	Including any witnesses
Details of Actions Taken/to be T	aken (to be completed by the Area Lead or Deputy for Safeguarding)
Actions taken so far	Detail any agency contacted, who was spoken to and any timescales/actions given. If no action has been taken, detail the reason(s) why. Include times and dates.
Actions to be taken	Detail any actions that are to be taken, along with date/time, timescales and the full names and job roles of those who will be taking the action(s).
Name of agency contact(s), addresses and phone numbers/e-mails:	If you have dealt with any agency (i.e. Police/Social services/etc.), record the name, agency, job role and contact details of the person(s) you have dealt with.
Signed	
To be completed by the concern	ned person
Signature:	
Print Name:	
Job Title/Role:	
Date:	Time:
To be completed by the Area Le	ead or Deputy for Safeguarding:
Action taken:	
Decision Made:	
Signature:	
Print Name:	
Job Title/Role:	
Date:	Time:



Appendix G

Child Safeguarding Concern Form

This form should only be filled in with information already known, be careful not to ask leading questions. Fill in factually. It should be filled out ASAP, on the same day and stored on the MoreLife secure system Egnyte by the Area Lead or Deputy for Safeguarding.

Details of Concerned Person	
Service or department	
Name	
Job Title/Role:	
Contact email	
Contact number(s)	
Details of the Child	
Name (including any names known)	
Date of Birth	
Address	
Name of parent or carer and contact details	
Any special needs known	Including medical/disability/language/etc.
Name(s) and details of any other children (under 18 years of age) or adults at risk in the family or setting	
Name(s) and details of any other significant adults in family	
Details of the Concern	
Date and time of concern	



Details and nature of concern	Including any witnesses
Details of Actions Taken/to be T	aken (to be completed by Area Lead or Deputy for Safeguarding)
Actions taken so far	Detail any agency contacted, who was spoken to and any timescales/actions given. If no action has been taken, detail the reason(s) why. Include times and dates.
Actions to be taken	Detail any actions that are to be taken, along with date/time, timescales and the full names and job roles of those who will be taking the action(s).
Name of agency contact(s), addresses and phone numbers/e-mails:	If you have dealt with any agency (i.e. Police/Social services/etc.), record the name, agency, job role and contact details of the person(s) you have dealt with.
Signed	
To be completed by the concern	ned person
Signature:	
Print Name:	
Job Title/Role:	
Date:	Time:
To be completed by the Area Le	ead or Deputy for Safeguarding:
Action taken:	
Decision Made:	
Decision made.	
Signature:	
Print Name:	
Job Title/Role:	
Date:	Time:



Appendix H

Safer Recruitment

Criminal Record Checks

Enhanced DBS checks apply to eligible roles, which involve directly supervising or working with children, young people and adults at risk and give opportunity for staff to nurture relationships with children, young people and adults at risk.

The job roles eligible for enhanced checks with and without barred list checks have been assessed by SAFEcic as including:

- all those who work directly with children, young people and adults at risk in, or with, government regulated settings including schools, colleges, health providers, GP practices and social care settings
- managers of the above posts.
- all other staff are eligible for basic DBS checks

The DBS have published an online "Eligibility Tool" at <u>www.gov.uk/find-out-dbs-check</u> that can be used to assist this analysis:

• The company adheres to all its legal responsibilities under Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006.

When recruiting for posts working directly with at risk groups, managers will ensure they have recruited as safely as possible by:

- **a.** strictly adhering to the DBS policy and the company's policy on the Recruitment of Ex-offenders See the staff handbook on PeopleHR for further details;
- b. maintaining HR tracking records to give an overview for all staff detailing name, date of birth, address, next of kin, job role, application date, interview dates, references taken up, <u>Right to Work in the UK</u>, original documents seen, issue numbers and dates, relevant essential qualifications, induction delivered and date, ongoing training records and supervision or appraisal dates as relevant.
- c. carrying out DBS checks at the correct level. New job roles will be assessed for the level of check needed for all workers and their managers using the <u>DBS Eligibility Tool</u>. Currently those eligible for enhanced DBS checks with Children's Barred lists checks are: those delivering advice in hospital settings, and their managers can have enhanced DBS checks only. All other staff, except those working as administration staff for the CQC registered slimming clinic service who are eligible for Standard checks, are entitled to Basic DBS checks.
- **d.** additionally, requesting certificates of good conduct from foreign nationals coming to work in the UK; and International Child Protection Certificates (ICCPC) for those who have lived in the UK and abroad and are now looking for work that will involve them with "at risk" groups;
- e. ensuring all advertisements include a statement which confirms the company's commitment to safeguarding and safer recruitment;
- f. only using application forms, CVs are not acceptable; requesting written declarations, as appropriate, for enhanced DBS, and basic DBS posts and also those with military experience at short listing stage, and those working abroad or foreign nationals (see appendices I and J for template forms);
- **g.** working to a template outline for interviewing to cover any gaps in employment, discrepancies of information, rechecking if the applicant wishes to declare anything in the light of the requirement of a



criminal records check (where relevant) and to assess if the applicant has capacity to safeguard at risk groups if working in regulated activity;

- **a.** carrying out face to face interviews with a minimum of two interviewers (one who holds current safer recruitment training, if relevant) and recording notes against the template interview outline;
- **b.** requesting a minimum of two written references including one direct from the last employer, and following up any discrepancies verbally and recording what was said. Where relevant, referees should be asked if they have any concerns or knowledge about the applicant's suitability to work with at risk groups, including any safeguarding investigations and / or disciplinary issues;
- **c.** when employing agency staff, always taking up references from the last place of employment or seeking assurance from the agency that this has been done;
- **d.** in accordance with the Asylum and Immigration Act 1996, checking the eligibility of all applicants, including volunteers, to work in the UK. All applicants are asked to provide evidence prior to starting their employment. This is in the form of either a passport confirming that they are a British citizen or European Economic Area National or a United Kingdom Residence permit. Only original documents must be seen for any check, carefully compared against the application form for discrepancies and the essential details of unique numbers, country and date of issue should be recorded on the single central HR tracking record;
- e. checking that, when presented with a DBS check by an individual registered with the DBS Update Service, their level of check matches that requested by the MoreLife.
- f. making all offers of employment subject to having satisfactory references and any other relevant checks completed within a fair timescale, as appropriate;
- **g.** not allowing newly appointed staff in regulated activity to start work without a criminal records check, and not allowing those casual staff, who only work occasionally and cannot be checked due to not working more than 3 times in a month but would otherwise be in regulated activity, to work without full supervision, unless there is documented evidence of an acceptable check;
- **h.** ensuring that, in cases where staff move into a different role in the company from work where criminal records checks are not needed into a post which does, a criminal records check is carried out before the worker begins their new role. Currently all roles at MoreLife require DBS checks.

In all cases where a criminal records check holds information or the applicant discloses a criminal record:

• the Recruiting Manager will take a signed and verified copy to send directly by email to the HR Manager who will complete a risk assessment. No other worker should be involved other than the Managing Director who will sign off the outcome;

The HR Manager will:

- **a.** ensure the company's Policy for the Recruitment of Ex-offenders within the staff handbook is followed by risk assessing any information disclosed on a criminal records check, or by the applicant;
- **b.** compare the criminal records check for accuracy with any convictions previously disclosed by the applicant; and
- **c.** seek expert advice from Social Care Services (the LADO for relevant child information) where an applicant has been barred from working with children, young people and or adults at risk or if there is a concern that s/he may be unsuitable to working directly with them;



d. ensure that, in cases where low level information is received on the criminal records check, or disclosed by the applicant, but where the manager nevertheless wishes to appoint, there is a clear, recorded risk assessment carried out by the HR Manager, approved by the Managing Director

Recruitment of senior staff

Additionally:

- all directors must be over 16 and not disqualified from being a director
- all registered managers for CQC regulated services will be assessed by the CQC to ensure they have the skills, qualifications and experience necessary to manage the regulated activities provided

Recruitment of ex-offenders

- There are some roles within the company that may be suitable for the engagement of ex-offenders. In all cases the company is mindful to make fair and accurate risk assessments of the specific offences in relation to the vacant job role in line with the company's Policy on the Recruitment of Exoffenders which can be found in the staff handbook on PeopleHR.
- External professional advice from <u>NACRO</u> or a qualified legal advisor will be sought when needed.

Post-recruitment, training and supervision

- **a.** Induction and probationary periods, where relevant, for all staff will facilitate the development of understanding and grounding in the safeguarding policies, ethos and culture of the company. This will include being given the summary policy with any supporting safeguarding leaflet and a written record will be maintained with staff signing to say they have read, understood and will follow this policy at all times, equivalent to **Level One training**
- b. All those who lead or deputise for safeguarding will attend Leading on safeguarding training online, ideally face to face, every two year and as appropriate to their job roles and professional requirements, equivalent to Level Three training; and the free government approved <u>FGM training</u>, <u>PREVENT</u> training and <u>PREVENT Referral</u> training
- c. All staff who work face to face with clients will undertake / attend child and adult safeguarding training every three years face to face (or two years for online), as appropriate to their job roles and professional requirements, equivalent to Level Two training; and the free government approved <u>PREVENT</u> and <u>FGM training</u>. Also add, as relevant some senior managers and professionally qualified health professionals will also undertake Level Four training
- **d.** All those professionally regulated health professionals with a mandatory responsibility to report FGM will undertake the free government approved <u>FGM training</u>
- e. All those who check ID documents will undertake ID verification training which covers the importance of checking security features such as UV/Holograms/Watermarks, exactly matching identity documents for <u>Right to Work in the UK checks</u> and <u>DBS checks</u>, with reference to the <u>PRADO</u> website when needed.
- f. All staff will take part in appraisals and / or supervision throughout the year, as necessary;
- **g.** All staff are offered support when involved with professional safeguarding issues via one- to-one meetings with their line manager as appropriate, who will seek further support from the Area Lead or Deputy for Safeguarding or the National Safeguarding Lead or Deputy if needed.



Appendix I

Criminal Record Declaration Template Form 1 For positions that are covered by the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974.

Application for the Position of:	
Organisation name/site location:	

Name of applicant:	
Previous name(s) of applicant:	
Date of Birth:	
Current Address:	
Previous Address:	
(if resident of 'current address' for	
less than five years)	

The position that you are applying for is covered by the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act and therefore you are required to declare unspent convictions. It is important you understand that failure to disclose all unspent convictions could result in disciplinary proceedings or dismissal.

Having a criminal record will not necessarily prevent you from being offered employment. Please refer to MoreLife's Policy on the Recruitment of Ex-offenders which can be found in the staff handbook on PeopleHR.

For details of when a conviction becomes 'spent' or for more information on declaring a criminal record, you can contact NACRO at <u>www.nacro.org.uk</u> or Unlock <u>www.unlock.org.uk</u>.

Criminal Record Declaration

Do you have any unspent Yes / No (delete as appropriate) convictions?

If you have answered yes, please provide details of your unspent convictions below (please use a continuation sheet if there is not enough room).

Alternatively, you can upload the details online with this form. If you have provided details under separate cover, please tick this box:



To be used at short listing stage *Do you have any convictions from a military court (i.e. summary hearing or court martial) which are not yet spent under the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974? Yes/No (delete as appropriate)*

If you have answered yes, please provide details of these convictions below (please use a continuation sheet if there is not enough room).

Alternatively, you can upload the details online with this form. If you have provided details under separate cover, please tick this box:

I confirm that the information declared on this form (and/or under separate cover) is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and I understand that failure to disclose all unspent convictions could result in disciplinary proceedings or dismissal.

Signed:

Date:



Appendix J

Criminal Record Declaration Template Form 2 For positions that are exempt from the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974.

Application for the Position of:	
Organisation name/site location:	

Name of applicant:	
Previous name(s) of applicant:	
Date of Birth:	
Current Address:	
Previous Address:	
(if resident of 'current address' for	
less than five years)	

The position that you are applying for is exempt from the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 and therefore you are required to declare any convictions, cautions, reprimands or final warnings (spent or unspent) which are not protected by current legislation (i.e. 'filtered'). It is important that you understand that failure to disclose all convictions, cautions, reprimands and final warnings that are not protected could result in disciplinary proceedings or dismissal.

Having a criminal record will not necessarily prevent you from being offered employment. Please refer to MoreLife's Policy on the Recruitment of Ex-offenders which is kept in the staff handbook on PeopleHR.

For details of when criminal records become protected see the government guidance here: <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/dbs-filtering-guidance</u> or, for more information, about declaring a criminal record, you can contact NACRO at <u>www.nacro.org.uk</u> or Unlock at <u>www.unlock.org.uk</u>.

Criminal Record Declaration

Do you have any convictions, cautions, reprimands or final warnings *which are not 'protected' (i.e. filtered) under current legislation?* Yes / No (delete as appropriate)

If you have answered yes, please provide details of these convictions, cautions, reprimands or final warnings below (please use a continuation sheet if there is not enough room).

Alternatively, you can upload the details online with this form If you have provided details under separate cover, please tick this box:



To be used at short listing stage *Do you have any convictions from a military court (i.e. Summary or Court Martial) which are not protected under current legislation?* Yes / No (delete as appropriate)

If you have answered yes, please provide details of these convictions, cautions, reprimands or final warnings below (please use a continuation sheet if there is not enough room).

Alternatively, you can upload the details online with this form. If you have provided details under separate cover, please tick this box:

I confirm that the information declared on this form (and/or under separate cover) is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. I understand that failure to disclose all conviction, cautions, reprimands and final warnings that are not protected could result in disciplinary proceedings or dismissal. **Signed: Date:**



Addendum – Covid-19

Safeguarding children, Covid-19 annex

Children

Changes during the COVID-19 crisis

Changes to ways of working, such as contacting clients on the phone and by video calling, may bring to light new information about a client's home life. If you discover a family is struggling to cope, you should consider whether they and/or their family would benefit from further support from their local Early Help service, community food banks and other resources.

If you have worked predominantly with adults in the past, working via phone and video calling may give you increased access to knowledge about their family, including any children in their life. You will have to be mindful of this when you are considering safeguarding issues and support needs.

For some children, attending school may have been a protective factor, without which they may meet the criteria for being a vulnerable child. During the coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak, vulnerable children and young people are defined as those who:

- are assessed as being in need under section 17 of the Children Act 1989, including children who have a child in need plan, a child protection plan or who are a looked after child
- have an education, health and care (EHC) plan whose needs cannot be met safely in the home environment
- have been assessed as otherwise vulnerable by educational providers or local authorities (including children's social care services), and who are therefore in need of continued education provision

This might include children on the edge of receiving support from children's social care services, adopted children, or those who are young carers, and others at the provider and local authority discretion.

If you are concerned that not attending school is impacting a child's welfare, you must report this to your safeguarding lead who may contact social care.

Children may be expected to take on inappropriate caring roles in the pandemic. A referral to children's social care services is then appropriate so that the child's needs can be properly assessed, and appropriate emotional and practical support offered.

Family coping mechanisms and situations can change so, in their usual contacts with clients, practitioners should monitor potential safeguarding issues, including the wellbeing of children, parenting and caring for vulnerable adults. It is important to consider that due to isolation, domestic violence and abuse, mental illness, drug and alcohol use, increased strain on relationships, along with safeguarding issues, may escalate. We must also consider whether a child is being adequately taken care of if a parent becomes sick.

Signs of abuse

Signs of abuse may be harder to detect when you are conducting sessions over the phone or online so you must be extra vigilant. Signs to particularly look out for in children include:

- unexplained changes in behaviour or personality
- becoming withdrawn



- seeming anxious
- becoming uncharacteristically aggressive
- poor bond or relationship with a parent or appearing scared of parent
- knowledge of adult issues inappropriate for their age
- trying to run away
- unexplained bruises or injuries
- appearing unkempt or dirty
- losing weight

It is important to recognise that digital communication is a new way of working for not just us, but the children and that differences in behaviour are not always attributed to a welfare concern. With this in mind we must support in an inquisitive manner to really understand if changes in behaviour are a real cause for concern.

Adults

Changes during the COVID-19 crisis

As with children- changes to ways of working, such as contacting clients on the phone and by video calling, may bring to light new information about a client's home life. If you discover a client is struggling to cope, you should consider whether they and/or their family would benefit from further support from their local Early Help service, community food banks and other resources.

Safeguarding duties and responsibilities apply to adults who:

- have care and support needs
- are experiencing, or at risk of abuse or neglect and
- are unable to protect themselves because of their care and support needs

For some adults with care and support needs, attending day centres and other services may have provided a protective factor, without which they are more vulnerable to neglect and abuse. Adults with mental illness or drug and alcohol issues may be at heightened anxiety. There may be an increased risk of depression and suicide. So, at this time, those who are particularly vulnerable may accept help from those who seek to exploit them.

It is reported that the greatest opportunity for abuse during the COVID-19 crisis is financial. With additional pressures on services, normal service reductions, fear and isolation, the window is open to those who may seek to exploit those who may be vulnerable. The following have been reported:

- bogus COVID-19 testing kits sold door to door
- online sales of sanitation equipment that is never delivered
- links to a fake daily newsletter for COVID-19 updates
- fake insurance schemes and trading advice
- fake government emails offering tax refunds.

Other types of abuse may also escalate during this time. Individuals living with abusive partners may experience increased physical and emotional abuse which are less likely to be picked up as they are not in contact with others. They may be less likely to seek help as they believe emergency and other services are at capacity.



Signs of abuse

There are lots of signs of abuse, please refer to our Safeguarding Policy. These are harder to spot online and so you must be vigilant. They may include:

- unexplained changes in personality
- appearing unkempt or dirty
- weight loss
- unexplained financial issues
- extreme emotions including aggression and anxiety
- unexplained bruises and injuries
- fear of a partner or carer

It is important to recognise that digital communication is a new way of working for not just us, but our clients and that differences in behaviour are not always attributed to a welfare concern, with this in mind we must support in an inquisitive manner to really understand if changes in behaviour are a real cause for concern.

It is important that you talk to your clients, particularly those with care and support needs about the increased risk of abuse at this time (being mindful of who can hear the conversation). Advise them not to answer the door to strangers, never give out their personal details including passwords and pin numbers to anyone, not to respond to text messages, emails or phone calls from unknown sources and to check in regularly with friends, family and support services.

If you suspect any adult is being abused or neglected, contact you safeguarding lead or deputy (see below).

Using virtual platforms

When having telephone or using video-enabled conversations with clients or families, make sure that your own environment is quiet, free from distractions and remember:

- Check preferred contact number or email address if sending a weblink
- Identify telephone number as backup in case there are connectivity issues
- They might be on speaker phone
- Other people and children may be in the house
- Staff to introduce anyone off camera and ask the family to do the same.

It is worth establishing these points at the start of the call and adjusting your practice accordingly. If you are running group sessions be aware that clients may not feel as comfortable disclosing personal information. If any clients appear quiet or anxious, follow up with a phone call.

During every contact it is important to explore how clients and families are coping to give plenty of opportunity to identify care needs and to spot possible abuse. Question to ask include:

- How are they coping?
- How is their partner coping?
- How is the lockdown impacting family relationships? Any tensions?
- Is there anything they are worried about?
- How are their extended family? Are they worried about them?
- How are their other children coping?



- Explore what support networks they have in place, do they have access to food, etc?
- Provide a means for them to contact you at another time if they think of things that they need to discuss with you (this is particularly important to support disclosure of domestic violence and abuse).

During group sessions it will not be possible to explore all these areas fully with every client. Ensure that you are mindful of any group members who are quiet or seem anxious and pick up with them afterwards on a one-to-one basis.

If concerns are raised, contact your local safeguarding lead or deputy (see below) and follow the process outlined in the Safeguarding Policy.

Location	Area Safeguarding and Mental Capacity Leads	Area Safeguarding Deputies
Bedfordshire and Milton Keynes	Name: Claudette Rhiney Job Role: Service Manager Tel: 0740-7645-988 Email:claudette.rhiney@more- life.co.uk	Name: Grace Shiplee Job Role: Weight Management Lead Tel: 0778-894-3221 Email: grace.shiplee@more-life.co.uk
Essex	Name: Sophie Edwards Job Role: Clinical Lead Tel: 0778-543-3985 Email:sophie.edwards@more- life.co.uk	Name: Emily Costelloe Job Role: Weight Management Lead Tel: 0778-049-3033 Email: emily.costelloe@more-life.co.uk
Greater Manchester	Name: Sarah Berne Job Role: Service Manager Tel: 0777-592-0826 Email: sarah.berne@more-life.co.uk	Name: Meadhbh Westwood Job Role: Weight Management Lead Tel: 0750-364-7442 Email: meadhbh.westwood@more-life.co.uk
Suffolk	Name: Lisa Cox Job Role: Head of OneLife Suffolk Services Tel: 0782-651-6400 Email: lisa.cox@onelifesuffolk.co.uk	East Suffolk: Name: Helen Rose Clarke Job Role: Child Weight Management Lead Tel: 0782-651-7494 Email: <u>helen.rclark@onelifesuffolk.co.uk</u> West Suffolk:

Local Safeguarding and Mental Capacity Leads and Safeguarding deputies



		Name: Judith Godfrey
		Job Role: Adult Weight Management Lead
		Tel: 0782-651-6330
		Email: Judith.godfrey@onelifesuffolk.co.uk
		<u>Waveney:</u>
		Name: Julie Newman
		Job Role: Stop Smoking Lead
		Tel: 07880 232345
		Email: julie.newman@onelifesuffolk.co.uk
Wakefield	Name: Kathryn Rushton	Name: Sophie Edwards
	Job Role: Operations Manager	Job Role: Clinical Lead
	Tel: 0778-894-3923	Tel: 0778-543-3985
	Email:kathryn.rushton@more- life.co.uk	Email: sophie.edwards@more-life.co.uk